
   
OOORRREEEGGGOOONNN   PPPUUUBBBLLLIIICCC   EEEMMMPPPLLLOOOYYYEEEEEESSS   RRREEETTTIIIRRREEEMMMEEENNNTTT   BBBOOOAAARRRDDD 

Note: If you have a disability that requires any special materials, services or assistance, call (503) 603-7575 at least 48 hours before the meeting. 

Michael Pittman, Chair   * James Dalton  * Thomas Grimsley   * Eva Kripalani   * Brenda Rocklin  * Paul R. Cleary, Executive Director 
 

Level 1 - Public 

 

 

  
FFrr iiddaayy  

JJuunnee  1166,,   22000066  
1111::0000  AA..MM..   &&  11::0000  PP..MM..   

  

PPEERRSS  
1111441100  SSWW  6688tt hh   PPaarrkkwwaayy  

        TTiiggaarrdd,,   OORR  

 ITEM PRESENTER 
A. Contested Case Hearings – 11:00 A.M. 
1. Contested Case Hearing for Susan L. Boracci KUTLER / RODEMAN 
2. Contested Case Hearing for Larry Lenon  
3. Contested Case Hearing for Lawrence Oglesby  
4. Contested Case Hearing for Dennis Bell  
5. Contested Case Hearing for Mardell Rogers  
6. Debbie McIntosh Petition for Reconsideration  
7. Richard McQueen Petition for Reconsideration  
8. Brian Metke Petition for Reconsideration  
   
Lunch Break 

B.   Administration  – 1:00 P.M.  
1. April 27, 2006 Board Meeting Minutes  CLEARY 
2. Director’s Report  
 a. Forward-Looking Calendar  
 b. OIC Investment Report  
 c. Budget Report  
 d. HB2020 Update  
 e. Miscellaneous  
    
C.  Consent Action and Information Items 
1. Action on Contested Cases RODEMAN 
2. Strunk / Eugene Implementation Project – Benefit Recalculation Letter STROUD 
3. Strunk / Eugene Policy Issues Update RODEMAN 
4. Adoption of Contested Case Rules RODEMAN 
5. Adoption of Model Rules of Procedure  RODEMAN 
6. Adoption of IAP Remediation Rules RODEMAN 
   
D.  Action and Discussion Items 
1. IAP Remediation Project Plan TYLER / RODEMAN 
2. HB 2189 – Lump-Sum Payment Employee Contributions RODEMAN 
3. 2007 Retiree Health Insurance Contract Change Proposals ENGLISH 
4. FY 2007 – 2009 Budget Overview and Concepts DEFOREST 
5. FY 2007 – 2009 Legislative Concepts Update DELANEY 
6. 2005 Experience Study: Methods and Economic Assumptions MERCER 
   

E.  Executive Session Pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(f), (h), and/or ORS 40.225 
1. Litigation Update LEGAL COUNSEL 

beanr
ADA Compliance Stamp



MEETING 
DATE 

6/16/06 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

B.1. 
Minutes 

SL1 
 

 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT BOARD 
 

PERS Board Meeting 
1:00 P.M. 

 
April 27, 2006 
Tigard, Oregon 

 
MINUTES 

            
Board Members: Staff:    
Brenda Rocklin, Vice-chair Paul Cleary, Director Joe Delillo Helen Bamford 
James Dalton Steve Delaney Craig Stroud  
Eva Kripalani Donna Allen David Crosley  
Thomas Grimsley Brendalee Wilson Steve Rodeman  
Phone: Mike Pittman, Chair Gloria English Brian DeForest  
    
Others:    
Karla Alderman Chris Warner Annette Strand Betsy Hammond 
Dallas Weyand Pat West Bill McGee Linda Ely 
BethAnne Darby Jerry LeLack Keith Kutler Myrnie Daut 
John Meier Hasina Squires Jerry Donnelly Alan Stonewall 
Steve Law Bob Andrews David Wimmer E. M. Laird 
Karen Artiaco Lance Colley Bill Hallmark Denise Yunker 
Maria Keltner Jim Green Deborah Tremblay Ken Armstrong 
Eric Carlson Steve Manton   
    
 
Board Vice-chair Brenda Rocklin called the meeting to order at 1:05 P.M.  
Excused from the meeting, Chair Pittman attended a portion of the meeting by phone. 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
 
B.1.  BOARD MEETING MINUTES OF MARCH 31, 2006   

Tom Grimsley moved and Eva Kripalani seconded to approve the minutes of the March 31, 2006 
meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
B.2.  DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Director Paul Cleary presented the Forward-Looking Calendar and noted that there was no 
meeting scheduled for May.  Cleary said the Individual Account Program (IAP) remediation plan 
and associated rulemaking would be discussed at the June meeting as well as a preliminary review 
of FY 2007 – 09 budget development concepts.  Cleary said that the 2005 Experience Study 
results would also be presented at the June meeting.  Cleary introduced John Meier, Strategic 
Investment Solutions, Inc. who will be working with the Board and the Oregon Investment 
Council (OIC) on the asset liability study to be done in the fall of 2006.  Cleary presented the 



PERS Board meeting 
4/26/06 
Page 2 of 4 

Retirement Fund investment return report and said that the fund balance was a record $56 billion 
dollars as of March 31, 2006.  Cleary also reported continued progress and effort on HB2020 
employer reporting. 
 
Budget and Fiscal Operations Manager Brian DeForest presented the April 2006 Budget Report.  
DeForest reported that various FY 2007 – 09 baseline agency budget data is being entered into the 
State budget system.  DeForest said that preliminary budget concepts would be presented at the 
June meeting for Board review, with the final concepts presented for approval at the July Board 
meeting. 

CONSENT ACTION AND INFORMATION ITEMS 

C.1.  ACTION ON CONTESTED CASE HEARINGS & PETITIONS 

Steve Rodeman, Policy, Planning and Legislative Analysis Division (PPLAD) administrator, 
recommended that the Board adopt draft final orders as presented in the contested case hearings 
of Brian Metke and Richard McQueen; postpone consideration of the contested case hearings of 
Larry Lenon and Lawrence Oglesby and deny the Petition for Reconsideration for Debbie L. 
McIntosh.  
 
The Board acted on each contested case item separately as follows: 
 
ITEM A.1. CONTESTED CASE HEARING FOR BRIAN METKE   
It was moved by Tom Grimsley and seconded by James Dalton to adopt the draft final order in 
the contested case hearing of Brian Metke.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ITEM A.2. CONTESTED CASE HEARING FOR RICHARD MCQUEEN   
It was moved by Tom Grimsley and seconded by James Dalton to adopt the draft final order in 
the contested case hearing of Richard McQueen.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ITEM A.3. CONTESTED CASE HEARING FOR LARRY LENON
It was moved by Brenda Rocklin and seconded by James Dalton to postpone consideration of the 
proposed order in the contested case hearing of Larry Lenon and address the case at the June 
Board meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ITEM A.4. CONTESTED CASE HEARING FOR LAWRENCE OGLESBY
It was moved by Brenda Rocklin and seconded by James Dalton to postpone consideration of the 
proposed order in the contested case hearing of Lawrence Oglesby and address the case at the 
June Board meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
ITEM A.5. PETITION FOR RECONSIDERATION FOR DEBBIE L. MCINTOSH  
It was moved by Tom Grimsley and seconded by Brenda Rocklin to grant Ms. McIntosh’s 
petition for reconsideration.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
C.2.  FIRST READING OF CONTESTED CASE RULES 

Rodeman presented the notice of rulemaking that would help streamline the contested case 
process, provide additional flexibility, and continue to comply with statutory requirements.  



PERS Board meeting 
4/26/06 
Page 3 of 4 

Rodeman reported that no public comment had been received to date and this rule would be 
presented at the June meeting for adoption. 
 
Chair Pittman joined the meeting via phone at 1:45 P.M. 

 
ACTION AND DISSCUSSION ITEMS 
 

D.1.   IAP POLICY DECISIONS AND NOTICE OF RULEMAKING 

Rodeman reviewed various policy issues that would be involved in the rulemaking process for the 
Individual Account Program (IAP) remediation.  Rodeman said the IAP structure and process 
currently follow statutes and rules as previously adopted by the Board, however the proposed 
changes would improve administrative processes, better reflect member and stakeholder 
expectations, and better conform to statutory direction establishing the IAP.  
 
Following a scheduled rulemaking hearing and opportunity for public comment, staff will present 
adoption of the permanent rule modifications at the June Board meeting. 
 
D.2.  ADOPTION OF ACTUARIAL METHODS 

PERS actuaries Bill Hallmark and Annette Strand reviewed the December 31, 2004 valuation 
results as prepared under current actuarial methods.  Hallmark then reviewed proposed method 
changes and valuation results under the proposed methods.  Strand said that the 2004 valuation 
presentation was for advisory purposes only and would have no impact on employer contribution 
rates; those contribution rates will be set using the December 31, 2005 valuation.   Strand said the 
results provided an estimated effect of the Strunk / Eugene decisions and reserve deployment, but 
did not include benefits or assets under the OPSRP and IAP plan.   
 
Jim Green spoke on behalf of the Oregon School Board Association, League of Oregon Cities, 
Association of Oregon Counties and the Special Districts Association under the newly formed 
Public Employers Alliance.  Green said the Alliance had some concerns about the Projected Unit 
Credit (PUC) method and the proposed rate collar from the standpoint of ensuring adequate 
system funding.   
 
Independent Actuary Alan Stonewall provided an analysis of the proposed changes to the 
actuarial methodologies. Stonewall noted that the proposed methods would make employer rates 
more predictable but expressed concern that the methods would shift funding into the future, and 
recommended that the Board adopt a policy of regular funding of the Contingency Reserve. 
 
BethAnne Darby, representing the Oregon Education Association and the PERS Coalition, said 
that they supported adoption of the proposed actuarial method changes.  Darby said that adoption 
of the proposed changes would improve the system’s transparency to stakeholders while 
providing more predictable and stable employer contribution rates that would benefit both 
employers and members. 
 
Dallas Weyand, Legislative Fiscal Office (LFO) encouraged the Board to adopt the proposed 
methods to better control and stabilize employer rates within acceptable actuarial limits.  Weyand 



PERS Board meeting 
4/26/06 
Page 4 of 4 

said the proposed actuarial methodologies would allow the Board to stabilize employer rates, 
which would help employers provide funding for other budget needs. 
 
James Dalton noted that the proposed actuarial method changes are important steps in improving 
the transparency of the system so stakeholders can better understand the true value of assets and 
liabilities.  Dalton also favored using a rolling three-year period to amortize the $1.2 billion 
increase in accrued liability that would be recognized under the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) 
method related to benefits already earned for prior service.  Dalton indicated that the Board was 
considering the method changes to improve accuracy, understandability and transparency, and not 
because of any near-term rate effects. 
 
The other Board members concurred with Dalton’s assessment of the proposed changes.  Chair 
Pittman noted the Board had openly been evaluating possible method changes since May 2005, 
with extensive opportunity for stakeholder involvement and detailed financial modeling.  Vice-
chair Rocklin and Eva Kripalani voiced support for the changes and for using the rolling three-
year amortization period for the additional accrued liability. Tom Grimsley agreed with the 
method changes but favored a four or five-year amortization period given current public school 
funding challenges and other government budget demands and constraints. 
 
It was moved by James Dalton and seconded by Eva Kripalani to adopt the actuarial method 
changes, as presented by Mercer, to apply to the 2004 PERS system valuation and to use in 
developing the 2005 PERS system valuation and to amortize the increase in accrued liability due 
to the change to PUC over a rolling three-year period.  Tom Grimsley noted that he supported all 
the proposed method changes, but voted no because of the three-year amortization period.  The 
motion passed. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Pursuant to ORS 192.660 (2) (f), (h) and ORS 40.255, the Board went into executive session at 
3:06 P.M. 
 
The Board reconvened to open session. 
Vice-chair Rocklin adjourned the meeting at 3:25 P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Paul R. Cleary 
Executive Director 
 
Prepared by Donna R. Allen, Executive Assistant 



MEETING 
DATE 

6-16-06 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

B.2.a 
Calendar 

 
PERS Board Meeting 

Forward-Looking Calendar 
 
 
July  2006  
  
Meeting:  1:00 P.M. July 21, 2006 
 
Oregon Savings Growth Plan (OSGP) Rule Notices and Advisory Board Appointments 
2005 Valuation Methods and Assumptions Approval 
2007 – 2009 Agency Request Budget 
Contested Case Hearing for Rosrin Toland 
 
 
August 2006 
 
No Meeting Scheduled 
 
 
September 2006  
  
Meeting:  1:00 P.M. September 15, 2006  
 
2005 Valuation System-wide Results 

SL1 



Returns for periods ending 4/30/06 Oregon Public Employees Retirement Fund

Year- 1 2 3 4 5
OPERF Policy1 Target1 $ Thousands2

Actual To-Date YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS YEARS

Domestic Equity 30-40% 35% 19,269,147$        34.7% 6.67        21.31      13.69      17.99         8.84        4.78
International Equity 15-25% 20% 12,161,651          21.9% 16.06      41.62      28.24      32.45         18.52      12.18      
Alternative Equity 7-13% 10% 5,024,436            9.0% 2.29        26.91      29.98      23.84         15.27      8.00        
Total Equity 60-70% 65% 36,455,234          65.6%

Total Fixed 22-32% 27% 15,425,984          27.8% 0.00 2.90        4.81        4.76           6.45        6.74        

Real Estate   5-11% 8% 3,652,906            6.6% 11.91      38.10      32.24      28.02         21.97      19.01      

Cash   0-3% 0% -                       0.0% 1.45        3.80        2.85        2.29           2.19        2.41        

TOTAL OPERF Regular Account 100% 55,534,124$        100.0% 6.66        21.44      16.54      18.06         11.76      8.37        
OPERF Policy Benchmark 6.21        17.18      13.44      16.24         10.16      7.11        
Value Added 0.45 4.26 3.10 1.82 1.60 1.26

Asset Class Benchmarks:
Russell 3000 Index 6.46 18.08 12.39 16.48 7.98 3.94
MSCI ACWI Free Ex US 15.42 38.14 27.08 31.66 17.94 11.43
Russell 3000 Index + 300 bps--Quarter Lagged 6.37 15.78 13.85 22.66 11.45 6.93
LB Universal--Custom FI Benchmark (0.57) 1.59 3.64 3.30 5.03 5.48
NCREIF Property Index--Quarter Lagged 5.43 20.06 17.24 14.42 12.45 11.40
91 Day T-Bill 1.39 3.68 2.74 2.18 2.03 2.23

1OIC Policy 4.01.18
2Includes impact of cash overlay management.

Regular Account Historical Performance

TOTAL OPERF NAV
(includes variable fund assets)

One year ending April 2006
($ in Millions)

48,996
49,484

51,303 51,631
52,601

51,746
52,974

54,080

55,574 55,313
56,013

57,212

40,000

45,000

50,000

55,000

60,000

May-05 Jun-05 Jul-05 Aug-05 Sep-05 Oct-05 Nov-05 Dec-05 Jan-06 Feb-06 Mar-06 Apr-06

                                          B.2.b.

SL1



 
Public Employees Retirement System

Headquarters:
11410 S.W. 68th Parkway, Tigard, OR

Oregon 
   

Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 23700

Tigard, OR 97281-3700
(503) 598-7377

TTY (503) 603-7766
www.pers . s ta te .o r .us

      Theodore R. Kulongoski, Governor  
 
June 16, 2006 
 
 

MEETING  
DATE 

6-16-06 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

B.2.c. 
Budget 

TO:  Members of the PERS Board 
 
FROM: Brian DeForest, Budget and Fiscal Operations Manager 
 
SUBJECT: June 2006 Budget Report 
 
2005-07 ACTUAL EXPENDITURES AND PROJECTIONS 

Operating expenditures for the months of April and May totaled $2,409,285 and $3,040,393 
respectively.  The combined variance from projected expenditures for both months was $286,220 
or 5.09% below projections.  With 45.83% of the biennium on the books, the Agency has 
expended just 39.43% of the Legislatively Approved Budget for Operations.  The expenditure 
‘burn rate’ is anticipated to increase over the next year as the Agency fully implements the RIMS 
Conversion and Strunk/Eugene projects. 
 
BUDGET VARIANCES 

General operations produced little change in budget variances over the last two months.  
However, two significant events change the shape of forecast variances for the remainder of the 
biennium.  First, the Agency has requested to administratively establish 27 new limited duration 
positions for the duration of the Strunk/Eugene project.  As previously reported, the 
establishment of these positions would be funded with accumulated vacancy savings.  The 
estimated cost for this biennium is $1.5 million.  The second event is an anticipated increase in 
Other Funds limitation of approximately $2.4 million to cover salary adjustments.  This increase 
is included in a request to the Legislative Emergency Board carried by the Department of 
Administrative Services.  There is no action required by the Board or the Agency for this 
limitation adjustment.  The net change in forecast agency-wide variance from the last budget 
report is listed below. 
 

Variance as reported at prior Board Meeting $1.3 million 
 Variance from April actual expenditures 0.6 
 Variance from May actual expenditures (0.4) 
 Full S/E implementation (1.5) 
 Other miscellaneous forecast increases  (0.4)
Sub-total (as of May 2006) (0.4) million 
 Anticipated limitation increase (salary adj.)   2.4 
Revised forecast variance 2.0 million 
 Earmarked RCP Contingency  (1.7)
Net forecast variance for remainder of 2005-07 $0.3 million 

 
 



6/16/2006 
Budget Report 
Page 2 of 2 

STRUNK/EUGENE 

As mentioned above, the Agency submitted a request to the Department of Administrative 
Services to administratively establish 27 additional positions.  These positions fulfill the overall 
Strunk/Eugene plan as presented to the Board and perform functions across each division line in 
the Agency to accommodate the recalculation workload.  Functions range from document 
retrieval and imaging, to benefit recalculation, to database changes that result from the 
recalculation, to collections and recovery activities.  The cost for adding these positions is $1.5 
million for the remainder of the biennium.  A full cost of this project, including the estimated 
cost to complete the project next biennium, will be prepared and presented to the Board at the 
July Board meeting. 

  



2005-07 Agency-wide Operations - Budget Execution
Summary Budget Analysis

For the Month of: May 2006 (prelim)
Biennial Summary

Actual Exp. Projected Total
Category To Date Expenditures Est. Expend. 2005-07 LAB Variance
Personal Services 18,594,988 26,757,307 45,352,295 44,564,938 (787,357)
Services & Supplies 10,987,879 18,994,729 29,982,608 30,384,327 401,719
Capital Outlay 379,660 751,103 1,130,763 1,033,494 (97,269)
Special Payments

Total 29,962,527 46,503,139 76,465,667 75,982,759 (482,908)

Monthly Summary
Avg. Monthly Avg. Projected

Category Actual Exp. Projections Variance Actual Exp. Expenditures
Personal Services 1,742,792 1,898,926 156,133 1,690,453 2,058,254
Services & Supplies 1,297,600 726,796 (570,804) 998,898 1,461,133
Capital Outlay 34,515 57,777
Special Payments

Total 3,040,393 2,625,722 (414,671) 2,723,866 3,577,165

2005-07 Actuals vs. Projections

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

8,000,000

JUL SEP NOV JAN MAR MAY JUL SEP NOV JAN MAR MAY

Projections Actuals
2003-05 Actuals

Actual Expenditures

62%

37%

1%
Personal
Services

Services &
Supplies

Capital Outlay

Projected Expenditures

57%

41%

2%

Personal
Services

Services &
Supplies

Capital Outlay



2005-07 Agency-wide Operations - Budget Execution
Spending Plan - Actual and Estimated Expenditures

2005-07 Summary
ACTUAL TOTAL

1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th EXPEND. EST. ENC. & ESTIMATED 05-07 LAB
QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR TO DATE EXPEND. PRE-ENC. EXPEND. BUDGET VARIANCE

Personal Services
Salaries & Wages 3,102,084 3,128,099 3,252,118 3,410,734 3,872,290 3,938,661 4,042,573 4,096,608 11,671,508 17,171,661 28,843,169 28,490,582 (352,587)
Temporary Appointments 40,406 43,071 29,041 22,781 1,600 6,200 21,600 25,137 133,499 56,337 189,836 156,922 (32,914)
Overtime 33,466 71,029 79,550 45,428 20,189 14,852 45,785 34,018 222,540 121,777 344,317 540,505 196,188
Shift Differential 1,326 1,615 2,139 1,389 375 375 375 375 6,345 1,625 7,970 1,980 (5,990)
All Other Differential 34,599 54,556 65,171 48,048 16,873 16,932 17,049 17,069 196,471 73,826 270,297 209,350 (60,947)
ERB Assessment 1,289 1,311 1,341 1,520 1,979 1,979 1,979 1,979 4,844 8,533 13,378 12,098 (1,280)
Wokers' Comp. Insurance (SA
PERS 449,000 451,927 439,938 460,872 571,993 580,931 600,676 606,863 1,621,009 2,541,191 4,162,200 4,278,122 115,922
Pension Bond Contribution 207,759 205,184 207,139 208,747 240,082 244,197 250,640 253,990 753,042 1,064,695 1,817,737 1,375,392 (442,345)
Social Security Taxes 243,827 249,974 261,324 269,364 299,217 304,242 315,745 319,250 929,849 1,333,094 2,262,943 2,249,081 (13,862)
Unemployment Comp. 16,576 4,077 20,654 20,654 37,388 16,734
Workers' Comp. Assess. 2,484 2,335 2,370 2,675 3,593 3,593 3,593 3,593 8,746 15,490 24,236 26,833 2,597
Mass Transit Tax 19,249 19,844 20,556 21,141 23,234 23,632 24,255 24,580 73,455 103,035 176,490 177,400 910
Flexible Benefits 756,424 772,987 849,681 865,386 936,642 969,217 1,034,367 1,034,367 2,953,026 4,266,043 7,219,069 6,976,371 (242,698)
Vacancy Savings (155,537) (155,537)
Reconciliation Adj. 188,451 188,451
Unscheduled P.S.

Total Personal Services 4,891,915 5,018,508 5,210,367 5,362,162 5,988,067 6,104,811 6,358,636 6,417,829 18,594,988 26,757,307 45,352,295 44,564,938 (787,357)
actual estimated

Services & Supplies
Instate Travel 12,995 24,326 14,906 17,755 23,185 29,085 21,485 26,130 60,737 109,130 142 170,009 116,894 (53,115)
Out-of-state Travel 40 2,035 1,300 300 300 300 2,075 2,200 4,275 31,127 26,852
Employee Training 30,385 44,332 39,369 35,580 40,760 37,815 37,815 38,915 134,149 170,823 304,972 488,069 183,097
Office Expenses 91,727 121,888 283,010 207,839 242,572 242,481 232,140 275,349 623,715 1,073,289 1,697,004 2,063,722 366,718
Telecommunications 25,713 69,518 65,443 64,100 68,249 68,249 68,249 68,249 202,024 295,747 497,771 537,685 39,914
St. Gov. Svc. Chg. 595,854 135,567 109,154 81,728 589,000 89,000 24,000 24,000 868,986 779,317 1,648,303 1,504,171 (144,132)
Data Processing 266,701 506,983 426,702 502,110 555,000 555,000 555,000 555,000 1,517,496 2,405,000 1,974 3,924,471 5,256,990 1,332,519
Publicity/Publications 7,318 6,251 18,487 28,811 28,600 16,100 14,200 22,100 59,668 82,200 141,868 292,704 150,836
Professional Services 545,896 1,213,796 1,638,044 653,867 463,000 426,400 561,050 490,100 3,933,431 2,058,722 207,528 6,199,681 2,862,534 (3,337,147)
IT Professional Services 360,233 1,343,483 2,614,954 979,563 1,026,185 1,227,303 1,035,966 2,346,236 6,241,451 3,500,000 12,087,687 13,897,953 1,810,266
Attorney General 48,913 72,187 88,628 75,407 141,000 141,000 141,000 146,500 238,135 616,500 854,635 947,681 93,046
Dispute Res. Svc. 957 3,910 16,510 10,782 8,300 5,500 6,200 10,000 30,359 31,800 62,159 73,736 11,577
Empl. Recruit./Devel. 8,863 24,770 39,593 13,789 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 82,016 65,000 147,016 58,036 (88,980)
Dues & Subscriptions 4,943 10,106 5,799 4,037 1,675 1,775 2,175 2,275 22,310 10,475 32,785 50,702 17,917
Facility Rental 104,691 95,696 96,140 95,322 94,068 97,368 99,018 132,024 360,493 453,834 814,327 703,597 (110,730)
Fuels/Utilities 23,497 25,490 30,773 22,632 15,000 15,000 15,000 20,000 97,391 70,000 167,391 121,063 (46,328)
Facility Maint. 47,868 43,335 47,231 78,394 76,251 76,251 76,251 101,668 191,412 355,838 547,250 724,698 177,448
Agency/Program S & S
Other COP Costs 371 1,090 765 2,226 2,226 6,500 4,274
Other S & S 1,095 8,915 (3,237) 624 7,397 7,397 2,700 (4,697)
Expendable Property 72,658 19,094 16,087 16,582 7,350 7,350 7,350 7,600 121,570 32,500 1,760 155,830 193,465 37,635
IT Expendable Property 23,267 35,037 65,248 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000 86,052 277,500 152,000 515,552 450,300 (65,252)
Unscheduled S & S

Total Services & Supplies 1,890,074 2,810,037 4,312,289 4,592,361 3,409,873 2,909,859 3,163,535 3,031,175 10,987,879 15,131,325 3,863,404 29,982,608 30,384,327 401,719

Capital Outlay
Office Furn./Fixture 30,868 30,868
Telecomm. Equip. 5,589 5,589
Technical Equipment 57,161 57,161
Data Proc.-Software 197,783 197,783 362,246 560,029 447,019 (113,010)
Data Proc.-Hardware 181,877 181,877 388,857 570,734 492,857 (77,877)
Building & Structure

Total Capital Outlay 181,877 197,783 379,660 751,103 1,130,763 1,033,494 (97,269)

Special Payments
Total Special Payments

Total Expenditures 6,963,866 7,828,545 9,720,439 9,954,523 9,397,940 9,014,670 9,522,172 9,449,004 29,962,527 41,888,632 4,614,507 76,465,667 75,982,759 (482,908)

Percent of 2005-07 LAB Expended: 39.43%
Percent of Biennium Expired: 45.83%

I:\BUD\1997-99\EXPEND\B.2.c. ATTACH.xls[Operations 05-07]



 
Public Employees Retirement System

Headquarters:
11410 S.W. 68th Parkway, Tigard, OR

Oregon 
   

Mailing Address:
P.O. Box 23700

Tigard, OR 97281-3700
(503) 598-7377

TTY (503) 603-7766
www.pers . s ta te .o r .us

      Theodore R. Kulongoski, Governor  
 
June 16, 2006 
 
 
TO:    Members of the PERS Board MEETING  

DATE 
06-16-06 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

 

B.2.d. 
HB2020 

 
FROM: Paul Cleary, Executive Director  
 
SUBJECT: Update of HB2020 Employer Reporting 
 
The agency is in its third year of administering the HB2020 program and using the new employer 
electronic reporting system.  The Membership and Employer Relations Section (MERS) is 
working with 875 employer-reporting units to process outstanding 2005 and 2006 employer 
reports, as well as to clear up any un-posted 2004 records.  In addition in 2006, PERS 
implemented electronic payment for employers and a new accounts receivable process.  Updates 
on each are provided below. 
 
EMPLOYER REPORTING 

The table below shows the status as of May 25, 2006 of employer reports and member records 
since 2004. 
          

 Calendar Year 
2004 

Calendar Year 
2005 

Calendar Year 
2006 

Reports due (estimated): 
 Number  
 Percent  

 
12,796 
99.2 % 

4,565
96.9 %

Outstanding reports  102 140
Reports fully posted at 100%: 

 Number 
 Percent 

 
12,307 
96.4 % 

3,878
84.9 %

Records due (estimated)  3,104,948 1,118,771
Records not posted  1,074 3,486 17,656
Contributions posted  $ 388,369,966 $ 406,175,098 $ 152,404,095
Contributions not posted $ 20,789 $ 166,235 $ 638,710

 
At the end of April 2006, PERS implemented a change to the employer reporting file format to 
assist employers in complying with HB 2189.  This change created an additional salary field for 
employers to report lump sum payments that are now considered subject salary for IAP purposes.  
Since the end of April, employers have been correcting their 2004 and 2005 data and this is 
reflected in the statistics shown above.  In particular since our April report, there has been a slight 
increase in the number of un-posted records for 2004.  In April, we showed approximately 800 un-
posted records and now there are approximately 1100 un-posted records.  We anticipate by July 
2006 these records will be corrected and posted.   



HB2020  
June 16, 2006 
Page 2 of 2 
 
For 2005 and 2006, employers’ year-over-year statistics have improved.  Last year at this time, 
only 92 % of reports due were submitted and only 67% of the reports were 100% posted.  
Currently, for 2005 we have 99.2 % of all required reports submitted and 97% of those are 100% 
posted, and for 2006 we have 97% of all required reports submitted and 85% of those are 100% 
posted. 
 
ELECTRONIC PAYMENT 

As of May 2006, mandatory electronic payments (automated clearing house –ACH) were 
implemented for employers.  All but 2 employers have complied.  The remaining 2 employers 
have been contacted numerous times and a penalty has been imposed for non-compliance.  The 
amount of uncollected payments for these 2 employers is less than $10,000.  As of May 2006, 
72% of employers have chosen to remit contributions via a debit payment and 28% have chosen to 
remit contributions via a credit payment.  
 
 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE PLAN 

Besides assisting employers with overdue reports and electronic payment, PERS implemented an 
accounts receivable plan to proactively collect receivable balances that are more than 30 days 
overdue. As of May 2006, we have 311 outstanding invoices with an aggregate balance of 
approximately $830,000.   We are following up with these employers by phone and letters each 
month. 

   

 















































































 
Public Employees Retirement System

Headquarters:
11410 S.W. 68th Parkway, Tigard, OR

Oregon 
Mailing Address:

P.O. Box 23700
Tigard, OR 97281-3700

(503) 598-7377
TTY (503) 603-7766
www.pers . s ta te .o r .us

   Theodore R. Kulongoski, Governor  

 

June 16, 2006 
 
 MEETING 

DATE 6/16/06 
AGENDA 
ITEM 

D.2. 
HB 2189  

TO:   Members of the PERS Board 
 

FROM:  Steven Patrick Rodeman, Administrator, PPLAD 
 
SUBJECT: HB 2189 and Employee Contributions on Lump-Sum Payments 

BACKGROUND 

The 2005 Oregon Legislature adopted HB 2189, which, under section 17, made a 
retroactive change to the definition of “salary” for the purposes of contributions to the 
Individual Account Program (“IAP”) by PERS Chapter 238 Program members. Under the 
2003 PERS reform legislation, certain lump sum payments to those members that were 
treated as “salary” for calculating final average salary under the PERS Chapter 238 
Program did not qualify as “salary” from which the 6% employee contribution was to be 
paid under the IAP. The 2005 legislative change made those lump sum payments subject 
to the 6% contribution and made that change retroactive to the start of the IAP program, 
January 1, 2004. 

As these payments were not considered “salary” for IAP purposes at the time they were 
originally made, employers were not required to remit the 6% contributions on these 
payments whether they assumed and paid them or collected the 6% contributions from 
the employees on a pre-tax or after-tax basis. As of May 1, 2006, all lump sum payments 
were reversed out of the jClarety system and the associated employer contributions were 
returned to the employers. Employers now have the functionality to re-enter lump sum 
payments, distinguishing between those that should trigger a 6% IAP contribution under 
the revised definition and those that should not. The retroactive nature of the legislature’s 
change has created special policy considerations to process such transactions. 

These policy considerations are germane only to the 6% employee contribution that is 
now triggered by the qualifying lump sum payout.1 Remember that the employee 
contribution can fall into one of three categories: 

1. Employer Paid Pre-Tax or “EPPT”: these contributions are assumed and paid by the 
employer. 

2. Member Paid Pre-Tax or “MPPT”: these contributions are “picked up” by the 
employer by deducting the 6% from the employee’s salary on a pre-tax basis. 

3. Member Paid After Tax or “MPAT”: these contributions are collected by the 
employer from employees on an after-tax basis and forwarded to PERS. 

                                                 
1 Employers agree that the employer will pay the employer contribution triggered by the re-entry of these 
payments as “salary.” 



HB 2189 – Lump-Sum Payment Employee Contributions 
6/16/2006 
Page 2 of 4 

PERS held a series of meetings with employers to resolve how best to fund and 
administer this retroactive requirement. Issues vary depending on the type of contribution 
involved, but generally the concern is the ability of employers to collect MPPT or MPAT 
contributions from employees who: 

• Claim they cannot afford the additional contribution from their current salary; 

• Have retired and are no longer receiving a salary from this employer, leaving the 
employer with no ready source of repayment; 

• Have left this employer’s service and are no longer in contact with them. 

• Have died. 

POLICY ISSUES AND OPTIONS 

Several issues have crystallized during the agency’s discussions with employers: 

• Who should bear the risk of loss should employers not be able to recover MPPT or 
MPAT employee contributions from those who owe them after these lump sum 
payments are re-posted? 

• Who is in the best position (PERS or the employer) to collect these contributions 
from the employees who have left employment? 

• What is an employer’s duty to pursue these contributions from those who are no 
longer their employees?  

• Can employees who would not benefit from making the contribution waive their right 
to have it deposited on their behalf? If so, who would develop and execute that 
waiver? Can a member even give informed consent to such a transaction, given all the 
ramifications it has on IAP, final average salary, etc.  

During these discussions, employers suggested that one source of funds for some or all 
(see policy choices below) of the financial impact could be the Contingency Reserve. 
Given the broad scope of the uses to which those funds can be applied, employers 
suggested that it could be tapped for some or all of the financial costs associated with 
these retroactive transactions. 

The group identified four policy options of sources to fund the employee contributions 
that will be triggered when these lump sum payments are re-posted. To be clear, these 
options only apply to lump sum payments that occurred between January 1, 2004 and 
April 30, 2006 to PERS Chapter 238 Program members. The options are listed below 
with the estimated costs:  

1. Employers pay all the contributions, whether EPPT, MPPT, or MPAT, in addition to 
their employer contribution, associated with these re-posted transactions. These 
lump-sum payments amounted to $63.7 million in salary that was backed out of the 
employers’ reports. When they re-post these transactions in the correct categories, 
IAP contributions of about $3.82 million would become payable, all paid by 
employers. This option puts the onus of solving the financial implications of this l 
retroactive legislative change wholly on the employer’s shoulders. 



HB 2189 – Lump-Sum Payment Employee Contributions 
6/16/2006 
Page 3 of 4 

2. Charge the Contingency Reserve for all the employee contributions due from the re-
posting of these transactions. Employers would re-post the lump sum payments and 
would then receive a credit payment from the Contingency Reserve for the 6% 
employee contribution associated with that lump sum payment. The Contingency 
Reserve would be charged for the estimated $3.82 million to pay all contributions due 
on these payments, regardless of whether those contributions were originally due 
from the employer (EPPT) or the employee (MPPT or MPAT). This option makes the 
system as a whole absorb the costs of this retroactive legislative change. 

3. Have employers pay the EPPT portion of the resulting contributions (estimated to be 
$2.84 million) and the Contingency Reserve pay for the MPPT and MPAT 
contributions (about $980,000). This option would use the Contingency Reserve 
funds to pay for those employee’s obligations without requiring employers to 
evaluate whether and how those contributions could be collected from the affected 
employee.  

4. Have employers pay the EPPT portion of the contributions (again, about $2.84 
million), collect the balance of MPPT and MPAT contributions from employees that 
are available and able to pay, and only charge the Contingency Reserve for those 
employee-paid contributions (MPPT and MPAT) that employers certify that they are 
unable to recover from the employee. Under this option, employers and employees 
pay their share of the associated costs, and the Contingency Reserve is used as a 
back-up resource only when employers are unable to collect the contributions due. 

STAFF ANALYSIS 

Legal: The broad language of the Contingency Reserve statute makes those moneys 
generally available for whatever the Board considers to be a contingency. Here, the 
complications in collecting contributions for retroactive salary adjustments certainly 
qualify as an unforeseen cost to this legislation. Although staff has not directly posed the 
question to legal counsel, using the Contingency Reserve in any of the three options 
outlined seems consistent with previous guidance on that reserve’s permissible uses. 

Fiscal: From the agency’s standpoint, administering any of the above options should be 
practical. Other suggestions such as off-line tracking and posting of contributions were 
rejected as too costly, complicated, or risky as regards data integrity. Additional agency 
costs would be incurred in working with employers to identify the transactions that 
would trigger a Contingency Reserve reimbursement, and then processing that credit, but 
that burden should be manageable within the parameters of current resources. 
Administrative expenses and contribution expenses for employers would vary by option, 
with Option 2 being the least burdensome from the employer’s perspective. 

Fiduciary: Each option allocates the financial burden differently. Option 1 leaves it 
solely on the employers’ shoulders; Option 2 the same for PERS. Option 3 gives special 
advantage to affected MPPT or MPAT employees because the Contingency Reserve is 
providing contributions on their behalf that would normally be withheld from their pay. 
Option 4 comes closest to aligning the financial burden with the beneficiaries who would 
receive credit for the contributions by attempting to collect the contributions that are due, 



HB 2189 – Lump-Sum Payment Employee Contributions 
6/16/2006 
Page 4 of 4 

but making the IAP portion of the system whole when the contributions can’t be 
collected. 

NEXT STEPS 

PERS will circulate this memo to employers and other stakeholders prior to the Board’s 
June 16, 2006 meeting. These parties will be invited to provide comment to the Board 
prior to the meeting, and, at the Chair’s discretion, at the meeting as to whether and how 
the Contingency Reserve should be used to pay the costs associated with the options 
outlined above. 





























































 
ADDITIONAL ITEMS FOR PERS BOARD 

June 16, 2006 
 
 
 
 
1. Agenda Item C.2. Strunk / Eugene Project Update 
    June 16, 2006 Strunk & Eugene Project Business Plan Update 
 
 
2. Agenda Item D.1. IAP Remediation Project Plan 
    June 16, 2006 IAP Remediation Project Plan Presentation 
 
 
3. Agenda Item D.2 . HB 2189 Employee Contributions on Lump – Sum Payments 
 
 
4. Agenda Item D.6. 2005 Experience Study:  Methods and Economic Assumptions 
    Mercer Presentation   
 

 
         
         

 
                         
                                               



1

Strunk and Eugene Project
Business Plan Update

June 16, 2006



2

Current Activities

Completing the project business plan

Preparing to finalize 2,800 estimated benefits and 
issue associated Notices of Entitlement
Preparing to issue the first invoices in September
Adjusting current transactions, such as death 
benefits, new retirements, disability benefits, etc.
Staging underlying transaction data for different 
adjustments groups



3

Completing the Business Plan

Submitted the agency-wide staffing model to DAS
Finalized the account adjustment schedule
Completing project budget estimates



4

Preparing to Issue the First Invoices

Benefit adjustment tools and processes

Accounts receivable system tools and processes



5

Benefit Adjustment Tools and Processes

Finalize and test the Benefit Calculator
Calculates the revised benefit amount at the retirement date

Finalize and test the Benefit Adjustment Program 
Calculates over or underpayment from retirement date to the 
adjustment date
Calculates the ARM amount, if applicable
Generates the benefit adjustment letter

Create and refine the processes to manage and support the 
adjustments
Continue RIMS modifications to support recalculations 

Membership
Benefit calculation
Pension roll and reserves



6

Accounts Receivable Tools and Processes

Selected accounts receivable collection software -- procurement 
must be finalized and then software installed

Create and refine the processes and policies to manage and 
support accounts receivable collections

Accounts receivable section has begun recruitment of two 
revenue agents

Collection letters for recipients issued lump sum payments are in 
development



7

Next Steps

July
Present final project business plan, including estimated 
project budget

August – no Board meeting

September
Report on work to finalize 2,800 benefits and issue 
associated Notices of Entitlement
Report on status of first project invoices



1

IAP Remediation
Project Plan

PERS Board Presentation
June 16, 2006



2

Overview

Refresher on IAP Remediation
Review of Policies and Principles
Outline of Remediation Process
Projected Timeline
Transitional Issues
Post-Remediation Administration



3

Review of IAP Remediation

The Individual Account Program (IAP) was created by the 2003 
Oregon Legislature as the repository and investment account 
for all member contributions due on or after January 1, 2004.

Both new OPSRP members and PERS Chapter 238 Tier One and 
Tier Two members participate in the IAP.

Ongoing administrative challenges and production of the 2004 
IAP member statements revealed flaws in the principles used in 
the initial design of the program.

At the PERS Board’s direction, agency staff embarked on a 
project to remedy concerns regarding IAP administration.



4

Goals of IAP Remediation

The Board recognized several goals that have shaped
the development of a new structure as staff has
worked towards implementing IAP remediation:

1.   Align the IAP with the administration of Tier One and Tier Two 
member regular accounts under the PERS Chapter 238 Program.

2.   More closely match member and stakeholder expectations with the 
IAP’s operations, communications, and controls.

3.   Create a structure that could be more efficiently administered by 
staff without creating new paradigms and features.

4.   Conform the administrative structure to the statutory direction 
established when the program was created.



5

Principles Behind Remediation

The Board also established several guiding principles as 
touch-stones for the remediation plan:

1. Members should not be harmed financially by the IAP structure   
and administration.  Under remediation, PERS will determine     
what current member account balances would have been if the  
new administrative structures had been applied to current member
accounts since inception and will adjust accounts accordingly.

2.   Transparency and simplicity should continue to be IAP core values.

3.   The IAP structure and reporting system should be simple and
understandable. The IAP should not be designed to be more      
than the statute directs: an individual account where members 
contribute 6% of subject salary that is then adjusted at least 
annually for earnings, losses, and administrative fees.



6

Major Structural Features

Principle changes from the current IAP operations will 
include:

IAP accounts would be adjusted annually for earnings or losses instead 
of monthly. Originally, IAP accounts were credited with a “unit value” 
that changed monthly. Under remediation, annual earnings will be
credited using a similar structure as Tier One and Tier Two member 
regular accounts.
Administrative fees will be netted against earnings on investments 
instead of being charged directly to member accounts. Currently,
members pay a flat monthly administrative fee. Those fees will be 
restored to member accounts, and instead costs will be subtracted from 
investment earnings under the annual earnings crediting process.
Withdrawal and retirement processes will be expedited because ending 
monthly unitization allows processing based on prior month’s account 
values and year-to-date earnings.



7

Imbedded Remediation Policies

The following policies have been incorporated into the 
remediation plan and the design of subsequent 
operations:

Account withdrawals and retirements that occurred prior to 
remediation will not be revised. Those members voluntarily left the 
program and their rights and obligations were settled under the 
rules governing the program at the time of their termination. 
However, those members will receive contributions and related 
earnings for any prior period adjustments such as corrections of
missing or under-reported contributions. This policy will also be 
adjusted as necessary to reflect the Board’s final decision on  
HB 2189 related contributions and earnings.



8

Imbedded Remediation Policies (continued)

Employers will be held responsible for the consequences of late 
reporting and forwarding of contributions. If member contributions 
are not posted in time to receive annual earnings because of an 
employer’s delay beyond the “annuals closing”, that employer will  
be charged for the imputed earnings, which will then be credited
to that member’s account. This policy will also be adjusted as 
necessary to reflect the Board’s final decision on HB 2189 related 
contributions and earnings.



9

Calendar Mileposts

August 1, 2006
“Blackout” Period begins – access to member account data blocked 
while CitiStreet rebuilds a database using remediation structures.
Effective date of last withdrawal/retirement under the former 
account structure.

October 1, 2006
“Blackout” Period ends – rebuilt member account data access 
restored to PERS.
Effective date of processing withdrawals and retirements under new 
account valuation and crediting.

Note: Start and end dates could change depending on final policy decisions, but staff and 
CitiStreet would work to maintain no more than a 60-day “Blackout Period” regardless 
of start and end dates.



10

IAP Member Statements

Will include revised 2004 and 2005 account data

Contributions for each calendar year
Earnings credited for each calendar year

Objective is to have statements for 2004 and 2005 produced and mailed 
during Fourth Quarter 2006



11

Transitional Issues

Members will not have access to account data during the 
“blackout” period. 
Contribution records will not be posted until CitiStreet has 
constructed the new database.

Contributions will continue to be received by PERS and         
invested daily.
With annual earnings crediting, this delay will not affect the  
amount credited to accounts as all contributions received within
a calendar year and related “annual closing” are credited equally 
on a year-end account balance basis.

PERS will continue to process account withdrawals and retirement
applications so the distribution can occur as soon as CitiStreet’s  
systems are restored; some delays may occur but not anticipated 
to go beyond the current 120 day threshold from the effective date of 
application.



12

Post-Remediation Administration

After remediation is completed, several conditions will still require 
attention or resolution:

What will be the nature and scope of member account access? 
Does  the web site provide sufficient value for the cost considering the 
only change in account value from month to month will be additional 
contributions?

Processing of withdrawals and retirements must continue to be 
streamlined so members receive their benefits quicker.

Process improvements in the areas of employer corrections and 
notification need to be developed and instituted.

Some members who retired under the former operational structure 
still receive installments. Adjustments for earnings and losses will have 
to be made under that structure as closely as possible.

Records of the prior account balances and transactions will be 
maintained in case questions or challenges arise.



1

HB 2189

Funding for 
Retroactive Adjustments

PERS Board Presentation
June 16, 2006



2

Background

HB 2189 restored lump sum payouts as “salary” 
for PERS Chapter 238 Tier One and Tier Two 
member’s IAP accounts.

Initial definition in 2003’s HB 2020 excluded lump 
sum payments (eg., vacation, overtime and comp 
time) payouts from being subject to IAP 
contributions.

In 2005, HB 2189 was adopted to apply former 
definition to lump sum payments.

Applied retroactively to payments since January 1, 
2004. Effective June 29, 2005.



3

Remedial Steps So Far

1. Employer reporting format changed eff. May 1, 
2006 to allow posting of corrected salary figures.

2. Lump-sum related salary reported for Tier One and 
Two members backed out – $63,726,908.76.

3. Employers can now report lump sum payments in 
correct field:

Triggers 6% IAP Contribution
Employer contribution charged based on employer’s 
rate
Included in Final Average Salary for Tier One (never 
was for Tier Two)



4

Statistics

Total Employers Adjusted: 471
Total IAP Contributions Due: $3,823,617.00

Employer assumed and paid: $2,844,192.25
Member withheld and paid: $979,424.75



5

Sample Employers – Top 10 IAP Due

Salary Backed Out Employer Paid Member Paid Total IAP Due
IAP Due              IAP Due

DEPT. OF HUMAN SERVICES $ (4,175,255.60) $ 250,515.45 $ - $ 250,515.45
MARION COUNTY $ (4,167,908.56) $          - $ 250,074.61 $ 250,074.61
LANE COUNTY $ (3,673,859.30) $          - $ 220,431.46 $ 220,431.46
CITY OF EUGENE $ (3,486,758.90) $    209,205.53 $         - $ 209,205.53
DEPT. OF TRANSPORTATION $ (2,421,888.48) $    145,313.41 $         - $ 145,313.41 
CITY OF PORTLAND $ (2,274,453.54) $    136,467.10 $         - $ 136,467.10 
MULTNOMAH COUNTY $ (2,092,020.37) $    125,521.33 $         - $ 125,521.33 
CITY OF SALEM $ (1,880,316.78) $    106,348.31 $     6,470.85 $ 112,819.16 
OR HEALTH & SCIENCES UNIV. $ (1,732,903.02) $    103,974.32 $          - $ 103,974.32 
JOSEPHINE COUNTY $ (1,502,575.89) $             29.74 $   90,124.87 $   90,154.61



6

Process to Restore IAP Accounts

1. Employers re-post lump sum payments under new 
reporting format.

Format is available now but not mandatory until January 
1, 2007.

2. JClarety system bills employers for ER and IAP 
contribution; saves salary record for FAS as appropriate.

3. IAP contribution is forwarded to CitiStreet to be posted to 
member’s account along with attributed earnings.

Calculated from effective date of new law (June 29, 2005) 
or from when lump sum payment was actually made to 
the member?  Calculating earnings from when payment 
was made would be consistent with legislative direction to 
make these adjustments retroactive to January 1, 2004.



7

Options to Fund IAP 
Contributions and Earnings

1. Employers billed for IAP contributions and 
associated earnings.

2. Employers billed for IAP contributions; 
associated earnings are paid by the 
Contingency Reserve.

3. The Contingency Reserve is used to credit 
employers for the cost of IAP contributions and 
to pay associated earnings.



8

Contingency Reserve as Source

Would be consistent with statute: reserve is available 
for any contingency that the Board may determine to be 
appropriate.

Except legal expenses or judgments arising in the 
adjudicating individual member or employer disputes.

Would be consistent with prior usage to settle disputes: 
funded amounts owed to petitioning employers in 
Eugene case for over-charging for employer 
contributions.



9

Other Considerations

Some employers would benefit disproportionately since not 
all employers made lump sum payments during the time 
period January 1, 2004 to May 1, 2006, nor under consistent 
policies.

Disproportionate benefits for members would otherwise have 
had their IAP contribution withheld out of their own wages; 
employer or Contingency Reserve may pay instead.

Places responsibility on the system as a whole (through use 
of Contingency Reserve) for an obligation that falls 
disproportionately among members and employers.

Consistency with IAP Remediation policies insofar as prior 
period adjustments.



Oregon PERS and OPSRP
Experience Study for December 31, 2005 Valuation
Methods and Economic Assumptions
Bill Hallmark and Annette Strand

June 16, 2006



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 1
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Contents

Introduction

Actuarial Methods
– Actuarial cost method
– Amortization method
– Asset valuation method
– Contribution rate smoothing method
– Adjustment for 18-month delay

Economic Assumptions
– Inflation
– Real wage growth
– Investment return
– Health cost trend rate

Next Steps

Appendix



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 2
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Introduction
Retirement Plan Financial Management Framework

Total Contributions = Benefits Paid - Investment Earnings

ManagedManaged
CostsCostsObjectivesObjectives

FundingFunding

Governance

InvestmentInvestment

BenefitBenefit

Actuarial methods primarily affect the timing of contributions



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 3
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Introduction
Objectives for Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Transparent

Predictable and stable rates

Protect funded status

Equitable across generations

Actuarially sound

GASB compliant



Actuarial Methods
PERS and OPSRP



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 5
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Actuarial Methods
Overview

Review of PERS methods
– Significant method changes adopted with 12/31/2004 valuation
– No changes recommended to the newly adopted methods

Establish methods for first valuation of OPSRP
– Recommend same basic methods as used for PERS valuation
– Some minor differences



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 6
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Actuarial Methods
Summary of Recommendations

Current PERS
Recommended 
PERS

Recommended 
OPSRP

Rate Collar Greater of 20% of current rate 
or 3 percentage points.  Rate 
collar doubles if funded 
percentage falls below 80% 
or increases above 120%

Same as Current Same as Current

Actuarial Cost 
Method

Projected Unit Credit Same as Current Same as Current

Amortization 
Method

Level Percent of Combined 
Payroll

Same as Current Same as Current

Amortization 
Period

12/31/2005 UAL – 22 years
PUC Method change – 3-
year rolling
Future experience – Same 
as OPSRP

Same as Current 20 years (from first 
valuation used to set 
contribution rates in 
which experience is 
recognized)

Asset Valuation 
Method

Market Value Same as Current Same as Current

Excluded 
Reserves

Contingency, Capital 
Preservation, and Rate 
Guarantee

Same as Current Contingency and 
Capital Preservation



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 7
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Actuarial Methods
Actuarial Cost Method

After significant analysis, the Board recently adopted the Projected 
Unit Credit Method for PERS.

For OPSRP—
– There is no Money Match benefit that drove our recommendation 

for PERS
– OPSRP is not a closed group, so the PUC normal cost is not 

expected to rise over time as a percentage of payroll
– Both the Entry Age Normal and Projected Unit Credit cost methods

would work well for OPSRP
– We believe there is an advantage in communicating to 

stakeholders using the same cost method for both systems, so we 
recommend the Projected Unit Credit Method for OPSRP



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 8
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Actuarial Methods
Amortization Method

PERS amortizes the UAL as a level percentage of payroll in order to target 
future contribution rates as a level percentage of payroll.  We recommend 
that both PERS and OPSRP continue this methodology.

For PERS, we recommend no change to the amortization period.
– A rolling 3-year period for the increase in UAL due to the adoption of the 

PUC cost method.
– A closed 22-year period for the regular UAL 
– Future gains and losses will be amortized over a closed 20-year period 

beginning with the first odd-year valuation in which they are recognized.

For OPSRP, we recommend using PERS’ ultimate method
– Gains and losses are amortized over a closed 20-year period beginning 

with the first odd-year valuation in which they are recognized



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 9
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Actuarial Methods
Asset Valuation Method and Excluded Reserves

After significant analysis, the Board recently adopted the market value 
of assets as the asset valuation method for PERS.

We recommend this method be continued for PERS and OPSRP.

In the 12/31/2004 PERS valuation, the following reserve accounts
were excluded from valuation assets
– Contingency Reserve
– Capital Preservation Reserve
– Rate Guarantee Reserve

We recommend the same reserve accounts continue to be excluded 
from the valuation assets



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 10
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Actuarial Methods
Rate Collar Method

After significant analysis, the Board recently adopted a rate collar that 
restricts the change in an employer’s contribution rate to the greater of 
20% of the current rate or 300 basis points.

If the funded status is less than 80% or greater than 120%, the size of 
the rate collar is doubled.

The rate collar is applied for each employer prior to any adjustments 
to the employer contribution rate for side accounts, transition liabilities, 
or pre-SLGRP pooled liabilities.

We recommend that this method be applied to both PERS and 
OPSRP.



Economic Assumptions
PERS and OPSRP



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 12
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Summary of Recommendations

Current 
Assumption

Recommended 
Assumption

Inflation 3.00% 2.75%

Real Wage Growth 1.00% 1.00%

Payroll Growth 4.00% 3.75%

Regular Investment Return 8.00% 8.00%

Variable Investment Return 8.50% 8.50%

Health Cost Trend Rate

2007 Trend Rate 7.00% 9.00%

Ultimate Trend Rate

Year Reaching Ultimate Trend

5.00% 5.00%

2011 2013



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 13
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Inflation

The inflation assumption affects other 
assumptions, including payroll growth, 
investment return, and health care 
inflation

Historical rates have varied significantly 
as shown in the chart on the top

Market estimates of future inflation rates 
can be estimated from the difference in 
yield between nominal Treasury 
securities and Treasury inflation 
protection securities (TIPS)

Market estimates of future average 
inflation rates as of December 31, 2005 
are shown in the chart on the bottom.

Expected inflation should be lower than 
breakeven inflation due to inflation risk 
premiums in nominal bonds

Historical CPI-U

-5%
0%
5%

10%
15%
20%

1935 1945 1955 1965 1975 1985 1995 2005

CPI-U Current Assumption Recommended Assumption

As of 
12/31/2005 10-Year 30-Year

Treasury Yield 4.39% 4.54%

TIPS Yield 2.06% 1.90%

Breakeven 
Inflation 2.33% 2.64%



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 14
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Inflation

Adjusting the breakeven inflation 
rate for a 30 to 50 basis point risk 
premium produces an expected 
long-term inflation rate well below 
3.0%.

Social Security’s current 
intermediate inflation assumption is 
2.8%.

Congressional Budget Office 
projection of CPI is 2.8% for 2006 
and 2.2% for 2007 -2016.

Consequently, we recommend 
reducing the inflation assumption to 
2.75%.

Inflation Assumption

Current 
Assumption 3.00%

Mercer’s Best-
Estimate Range

1.75% --
3.25%

Recommended 
Assumption 2.75%



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 15
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Real Wage Growth

An individual member’s expected salary increase is composed of 
three components:
– Inflation
– Real wage growth
– Merit and longevity wage growth

Real wage growth represents the increase in wages above inflation for 
the entire group due to improvements in productivity and competitive 
pressures

Real wage growth combined with inflation represents the expected
growth in total payroll for a stable population
– Changes in payroll due to an increase or decline in the covered 

population are not captured by this assumption



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 16
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Real Wage Growth

Social Security’s intermediate 
assumption for real wage growth is 
1.1%  

This rate plus inflation is used to 
amortize the UAL as a level 
percentage of expected payroll

Our best-estimate range for this 
assumption is from 0.75% to 1.5%

We recommend maintaining this 
assumption at 1.0%

Combined with our recommended 
inflation assumption, the payroll 
growth assumption would 
decrease from 4.0% to 3.75%.

Historical Real Growth in National Average 
Wages

-10%
-5%
0%
5%

10%

1954 1964 1974 1984 1994 2004

Real Growth in National Average Wages Assumed Growth

Average Real 
Growth Rate

Period Ending 
December 31, 2004

National Average 
Wages

10 Years 1.67%

20 Years 1.01%

30 Years 0.64%

40 Years 0.61%

50 Years 0.93%



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 17
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Investment Return

The investment return assumption is the most important assumption in 
the valuation.  It is used to:
– Discount expected future benefit payments to the valuation date
– Project interest credits on member accounts to retirement
– Convert member accounts to annuity benefits under the Money 

Match formula

The assumption is based on the target asset allocation set by the 
Oregon Investment Council and capital market assumptions for each 
asset class. 



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 18
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Investment Return

The target asset allocation is established 
by the Oregon Investment Council (OIC).

Based on capital market forecasts 
developed by OIC’s investment 
consultant, Strategic Investment 
Solutions, Inc., and the OIC’s expectation 
of annual active management returns, 
the OIC expects to earn a total expected 
annual policy return of 8.0% for the 
regular account and 8.7% for the variable 
account.

These expectations assume 60 and 50 
basis points in active management return 
net of fees for the regular and variable 
accounts respectively.

Target Asset Allocation

33%

20%8%

27%

12%

US Equity Non-US Equity
Real Estate Fixed Income
Alternative Equity



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 19
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Investment Return Please note that the US equity allocation is overweighted by 40% 

to small cap stocks compared to the all cap index and 10% of the
fixed income portfolio is non-US hedged government bonds. 

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Compound 
Annual 
Return

Annual 
Arithmetic 

Return
Standard 
Deviation

US Equity – Large Cap 29% 8.05% 9.50% 18.0%

US Equity – Small Cap 4% 8.39% 10.90% 24.0%

Private Equity 12% 9.38% 14.00% 33.5%

Non-US Equity 20% 8.40% 10.10% 19.6%

US Fixed Income 24% 5.03% 5.20% 6.0%

Non-US Hedged Bonds 3% 4.63% 4.80% 6.0%

Real Estate 8% 7.27% 8.10% 13.5%

Portfolio -- Gross 8.16% 8.93% 13.0%

Portfolio – Net of Expenses 7.91% 8.68% 13.0%

Based on capital market expectations developed by Mercer Investment Consulting



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 20
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Investment Return

Using Mercer Investment Consulting 
assumptions the median expected 
return is 7.91% net of expenses.

We assumed 5 basis points in 
administrative expenses and 20 
basis points in passive investment 
expenses.

We assume that expenses incurred 
for active management are offset by 
additional returns gained from active 
management.

The OIC expected annual policy 
return is 8.0%

We recommend no change to the 
8.0% investment return assumption.

Percentile
Investment 

Return

35th 6.79%

40th 7.17%

45th 7.54%

50th 7.91%

55th 8.28%

60th 8.65%

65th 9.03%



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 21
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Variable Account Investment Return

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Compound 
Annual 
Return

Annual 
Arithmetic 

Return
Standard 
Deviation

US Equity – Large Cap 89% 8.05% 9.50% 18.0%

US Equity – Small Cap 11% 8.39% 10.90% 24.0%

Portfolio -- Gross 8.16% 9.65% 18.3%

Portfolio – Net of Expenses 7.90% 9.40% 18.3%

The variable account is invested entirely in US Equities.

The annual arithmetic return is significantly higher than for the regular 
account, but so is the standard deviation.

The result is a long-term compounded annual return very similar to the regular 
account.



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 22
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Variable Account Investment Return

Using Mercer Investment Consulting 
assumptions the median expected 
return is 7.90% net of expenses.

The OIC expected annual policy 
return is 8.7% 

The OIC expected return is between 
the 55th and 60th percentiles of 
expected returns using Mercer 
Investment Consulting assumptions.

A higher return assumption for the 
variable account is more 
conservative than a lower 
assumption.

We recommend no change to the 
8.5% variable account investment 
return assumption.

Percentile
Investment 

Return

35th 6.32%

40th 6.86%

45th 7.39%

50th 7.90%

55th 8.42%

60th 8.94%

65th 9.48%



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 23
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Economic Assumptions
Health Cost Trend Rate for RHIPA Subsidy

Health Cost Inflation

Prior 
Assumption

Recommended 
Assumption

2005

2006

2007

2008 6.5% 8.0%

2009 6.0% 7.0%

2010 5.5% 6.5%

2011 5.0% 6.0%

2012 5.0% 5.5%

2013 
and later 5.0% 5.0%

8.0%

7.5%

7.0% 9.0%

The Maximum Subsidy increased an 
average of 9.6% over the last 4 
years

The Maximum Subsidy increased 
17.3% and 7.5% in 2005 and 2006 
respectively

Mercer’s healthcare actuaries expect 
medical costs to increase 7-13% in 
2007

We recommend revising the trend 
assumption to reflect recent 
increases and a longer timeframe 
before reaching the ultimate rate



Mercer Human Resource Consulting 24
g:\wp\retire\2006\opersu\meetings\061606 board presentation - Experience Study Part 1.ppt

Next Steps

June Board Meeting – Experience Study Part 1
– Actuarial Methods
– Economic Assumptions
– No Decisions Required

July Board Meeting – Experience Study Part 2
– Demographic Assumptions
– Allocation Procedures 
– Board Adoption of Methods and Assumptions for 12/31/2005 

Actuarial Valuation

September Board Meeting – 12/31/2005 system-wide valuation results
– OPSRP
– PERS T1/T2


	6-16-06 Board Packet.pdf
	Agenda
	Calendar
	OIC Investment Report
	Budget Report
	HB2020 UPdate
	C.1. Contested Case Action
	C.2. Benefit Letter
	C.3. Policy Issues
	C.4. Contested Case Rules
	C.5. Model Rules
	C.6. IAP Rmd. Rules
	D.1. IAP Project Plan
	D.2. HB 2189
	D.3. Health Insurance
	D.4. Budget
	D.5. Legislative
	D.6. Acuarial Exp. Study
	D.2. HB 2189.pdf
	D.2.
	HB 2189
	BACKGROUND
	POLICY ISSUES AND OPTIONS
	STAFF ANALYSIS
	NEXT STEPS


	Additional Items 6-16-06.pdf
	D.1. IAP .pdf
	D.1. IAP .pdf
	IAP RemediationProject Plan
	Overview
	Review of IAP Remediation
	Goals of IAP Remediation
	Principles Behind Remediation
	Major Structural Features
	Imbedded Remediation Policies
	Calendar Mileposts
	IAP Member Statements
	Transitional Issues
	Post-Remediation Administration






